
  1 

 

Council 

 
Contact Officer: Steven Corrigan 
 
Tel: 07717 274704 
 

 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 6 July 2022 
 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Summons to attend  

a meeting of Council 

 
to be held on  
 

THURSDAY 14 JULY 2022  AT 6.00 PM 
 
at 
 

135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 

 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio cassette or CD, and email.  For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.   

 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

Agenda

1  Apologies for absence   
 

To record apologies for absence.   
 
2  Minutes (Pages 8 - 19) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Council minutes of the annual meeting 
held on 19 May 2022.   

 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests 
and non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.  

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 
6  Petitions   

 
To receive any petitions from the public.   

 
7  Community Governance Review - related alteration order   

 
The Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee is currently 
undertaking a community governance review and will be making final decisions on a 
number of community governance reviews at its meeting on 8 September 2022. The 
committee could agree changes to parish boundaries which would impact on district 
ward and county division boundaries. To make district ward and county divisions 
coterminous with any parish changes Council is invited to authorise the head of 
legal and democratic to request the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England to make related alteration orders to alter both the district wards and county 
division boundaries. Any such requests must be submitted by 1 October, prior to the 
next Council meeting, to ensure any changes are implemented for the May 2023 
elections. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: to authorise the head of legal and democratic to request the 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England to make related alteration 
orders to change district wards and county divisions to reflect the changes made to 
parish boundaries arising from the current community governance review. 



  3 

 

 
8  Report of the leader of the council   

 
To receive the report of Councillor David Rouane, Leader of the council. 

 
9  Questions on notice   

 
To receive questions from councillors in accordance with Council procedure rule 33.   
 

A. Question from Councillor Mocky Khan to Councillor Sue Cooper, Cabinet 
member for Environment, Climate Change and Nature Recovery 

 
It seems that all other towns within South Oxfordshire are getting Electric Vehicle 
(EV) charging points except Didcot. Can the Cabinet member for Environment, 
Climate Change and Nature Recovery explain the criteria for selection and why 
Didcot was excluded?  
  

B. Question from Councillor David Bartholomew to Councillor Andrea Powell, 
Cabinet member for Corporate Services, Policy and Programmes   

 
At the Full Council meeting in May you announced there will be six FTE officers in 
the core climate action team. 
 
What is the annual cost of this to the council and what exactly are these officers 
going to do? 

 
10  Motions on notice   

 
To consider motions from councillors in accordance with Council procedure rule 38.   
 

A. Motion to be proposed by Councillor Anne-Marie Simpson, seconded by 

Councillor Alexandrine Kantor 

Good food is vital to us all and food production and farming is an important 

economic and employment sector in our district, with agriculture at the heart of 

many of our communities.  

However, the rising costs of fuel and other supplies is creating increased 

pressure on farmers across the district, whilst government policies on 

international trade deals threaten to undermine UK food quality standards and 

risk putting farmers out of business – as well as exacerbating food insecurity in 

the UK. At the same time, significant increases in the cost of living are putting 

pressure on residents across South Oxfordshire, forcing them to make difficult 

choices regarding their household budgets, including the amount spent on food 

and heating.  

The district council has a number of ways and opportunities that can help 

influence food production, support sustainable farming and distribution, reduce 

food waste, and promote healthy eating for the benefit of our residents and the 

environment, whilst supporting action to address climate change and building on 

the council’s corporate plan objectives.  



  4 

 

 

Council therefore resolves:  

1. To promote local food production and distribution and a sustainable food 

culture in South Oxfordshire by maximising opportunities to highlight the 

importance of food and farming in our local economy through our website, 

communications the press and social media 

2. To recognise that the initial cause of food poverty is not agricultural but 

economic/socio-economic due to high cost of living and to work with local 

partners such as Good Food Oxfordshire to promote and encourage food 

planning  

3. To encourage farming communities and agricultural businesses to respond to 

any consultation on our new Joint Local Plan and Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and 

to engage more generally with the council.  

4. To encourage developers to include community gardens and allotment 

provision within all new housing developments. 

5. To encourage and promote high environmental health standards at all stages 

of food production, distribution and redistribution, and continue to support 

local businesses, local farmers’ markets and ‘farm-door’ sales, recognising 

their positive impact on reducing the carbon emissions associated with food 

miles.  

6. To continue to investigate ways we can support food redistribution 

organisations and food charities to address food poverty in the district, noting 

the work that has already been done in this regard.  

7. To continue to promote ways we can reduce food waste through our waste 

service and the use of food recycling bins and promotion of the circular 

economy (reduce, re-use and recycle), highlighting the climate benefits this 

can bring through initiatives such as Food Waste Action Week.  

8. To minimise food waste at any event that we may host that serves food, and 

to use such occasions to highlight the use of waste food, low carbon options, 

and locally sourced produce wherever possible.  

 

B. Motion to be proposed by Councillor David Rouane, seconded by Councillor  
             Robin Bennett:  
 
Council notes that:  
  

 On 1 April 2022, Ofgem increased the energy price cap by 54%, however 
there is no price cap on solid fuel, bottled gas or heating oil. 

 The average standard tariff energy bill will increase by £693 per year. The 
average pre-pay meter energy bill will increase by £708 per year (Ofgem, 
2022). 

 The energy price cap is expected to rise significantly again in October this 
year. 

 The Universal Credit £20 uplift was removed last year. 

 Forecourt fuel prices have rapidly increased and are close to £2 per litre, 



  5 

 

badly affecting key workers, logistics, farming and food production.  

 On 6 April 2022, the Government increased National Insurance by 1.25 per 
cent, which is projected to cost the average family an additional £108 per 
year. 

 9 in 10 (88%) adults reported their cost of living had risen over the past 
month, with many citing affordability of food and medicines as a major 
concern.  

 Reliance on Food Banks has greatly increased across South Oxfordshire. 

 The cost of living increases also impact council services, from housing needs 
to the work of the community hub. Council finances are badly affected by 
rising inflation.  

 
Council declares that we have moved from a Cost of Living Crisis to a Cost of 
Living Emergency 
 
Council asks the leader to call on the Government to: 

- Urgently review the energy cap regime and provide much greater protection 
to consumers, as other European countries have done. 

- Make an immediate reduction in VAT, which proportionally helps those most 
in need  

- Increase benefits in line with inflation and reinstate the Universal Credit uplift  
- Urgently provide financial support to public transport to avoid service 

reductions  
- Recognise that councils like South Oxfordshire will need additional funding to 

support services affected by high inflation  
 
Council further resolves:  

- To call for a local Cost-of-Living Emergency Summit with stakeholders, 
including Oxfordshire County Council, Citizens Advice, Food Banks, and 
others, and to invite both local MPs to attend to work towards a community 
response to the emergency.  

- To ensure Council continues to maximise opportunities to inform and support 
residents in need, directing them towards services that advise on heating 
bills, employment and skills and wellbeing support via our Community Hub  

- To continue to offer up to 100% council tax reduction, subject to 
circumstances, and to advise our residents through all channels of 
communication how to apply for the scheme 

 
C. Motion to be proposed by Councillor Jo Robb, seconded by Councillor  
       Elizabeth Gillespie:  

 
This Council notes: 
 
Residents and councillors remain deeply concerned about water quality and the 
impact on human health and wildlife, of sewage discharges into the River Thames 
and its tributaries. 
 
Sewage discharges are happening with increasing frequency. Thames Water 
dumped raw sewage into the River Thames and its tributaries 5,028 times in 2021.  
 
Data obtained from Thames Water and compiled by the Oxford Rivers Improvement 
Campaign (ORIC) shows that in 2020, treatment works in South Oxfordshire were 



  6 

 

operating significantly short of the capacity required to cope with existing 
populations.  
 

 Didcot has 61% of the capacity required 

 Oxford Sewage Treatment Works in (Sandford), has 62% of the capacity 
required 

 Chinnor has 69% of the capacity required 

 Wheatley has 86% of the capacity required 

 Chalgrove has 71% of the capacity required 
 
South Oxfordshire has plans for almost 30,000 new homes to be delivered between 
2011 and 2035. The district has already seen a significant increase in its population 
of 14,800 from 134,300 (2011) to 149,100 (2021).    
 
Legislation establishes the right to connect to the foul water system. Where Thames 
Water identifies infrastructure capacity issues and the developer indicates that it 
intends to connect to the public sewer, South Oxfordshire District Council makes 
permission conditional on Thames Water taking necessary steps to ensure the 
public sewer can cope with the increased load (“Grampian-style” conditions).  
 
But the Council is not informed of the specifics of sewage treatment capacity and is 
not told whether development is likely to lead to an increase in sewage discharges 
into the Thames or its tributaries. 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 

1. Ensure that an evidence base is compiled that assesses the cumulative 
impact of sewage discharge so that this is factored into decisions on the new 
Joint Local Plan. 

2. Request that Thames Water submit to Council and make public by the end of 
2022, detailed and up to date information on sewage treatment work capacity 
at all treatment works in South Oxfordshire, make clear plans for 
infrastructure improvements and detail how these will work to reduce and 
ultimately eliminate sewage discharges. 

3. Ask Thames Water, as part of its response to major planning applications, to 
provide detailed and up to date information on capacity at the treatment 
works that will be handling the waste from the new development, and 
information on the likely impact of additional development on sewage 
discharges into the River Thames and its tributaries, in order that this 
information can be considered in the decision-making process. 

4. Request that planning officers include in all reports relating to major 
development, a summary response from Thames Water to our consultation 
and, where information/data is provided, include a specific section on the 
impact on the wastewater network and watercourses, including the potential 
for the development to affect sewage discharges. 

5. Noting Thames Water’s plans to make information from electronic duration 
monitors public by the end of 2022, ask Thames Water to measure and make 
public, information on the volume of sewage discharged, not just the number 
of hours. 

6. Request that Thames Water provide detailed costings and timescales to 



  7 

 

achieve a progressive reduction and ultimately an end to sewage discharges 
in South Oxfordshire.  

7. Ask the Leader to write to OFWAT and the Secretary of State to request that 
work take place to align water company investment strategies and timetables 
with strategic local planning so that planned infrastructure investment better 
relates to planned housing development.  

8. Ask the Leader to write to the Secretary of State, OFWAT and the 
Environment Agency to request that sewerage undertakers be required to 
make public, up to date information on sewage treatment work capacity and 
volume of sewage discharges for all sewage treatment works by the end of 
2023.  

 
 

11  Exclusion of the public   
 

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   

 
12  Application for grant funding - Thame and District Housing 

Association (Pages 20 - 28) 
 

Cabinet, at its meeting on 23 June 2022, considered the confidential report of the 
deputy chief executive – place on the provision of grant funding using commuted 
sums held by the council, towards an affordable housing project being delivered by 
Thame and District Housing Association (TDHA), who are registered with the 
Regulator of Social Housing as a Registered Provider of affordable housing. 

The recommendations of Cabinet were circulated to all councillors on 24 June 2022. 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 



 1 

Minutes 

 

OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE 
  

Council 

 
Held on Thursday 19 May 2022 at 6.00 pm 
135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Jo Robb (Chair - in the chair for items 1 and 2), Ken Arlett, Anna Badcock, 
Pieter-Paul Barker, David Bartholomew, Robin Bennett, Sam Casey-Rerhaye,  
Sue Cooper, Peter Dragonetti, Maggie Filipova-Rivers, Stefan Gawrysiak,  
Elizabeth Gillespie, Kate Gregory, Victoria Haval, Lorraine Hillier, Kellie Hinton, 
Alexandrine Kantor, Mocky Khan, George Levy, Axel Macdonald, Jane Murphy,  
Caroline Newton, Andrea Powell, Leigh Rawlins, Sue Roberts, David Rouane,  
Anne-Marie Simpson, Alan Thompson, David Turner, Andrea Warren and Celia Wilson 
 

Officers: Patrick Arran, Head of Legal & Democratic and Monitoring Officer, 

Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager, and Adrianna Partridge, Deputy Chief 
Executive – Transformation and Operations 
 

1 Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Tim Bearder,  
David Bretherton, Lynn Lloyd, Ian Snowdon and Ian White 
 

2 Election of chair  
 
The outgoing Chair, Councillor Jo Robb, reviewed her year as Chair of the council and 
thanked councillors and the vice-chair for their assistance and support during the year.  

Councillors David Rouane, Mocky Khan, Robin Bennett, Jane Murphy, Stefan Gawrysiak 
and Elizabeth Gillespie paid tribute to Jo Robb in recognition of her work as Chair of the 
council during the past year. 
 
Councillor David Turner was nominated as chair for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED:  to elect Councillor Turner as chair of the council for the 
2022/23 municipal year, until the next annual meeting of the Council in 
May 2023. 
 

Councillor Turner signed his declaration of acceptance of office and made an acceptance 
speech. He advised that his chosen charities are Chalgrove and Watlington First Steps 
Children Centre and River Thame Conservation Trust. 

Councillor Jo Robb presented Councillor David Turner with the chain of office. 

Councillor Turner in the chair. 

Public Document Pack

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 2 

 

3 Appointment of vice-chair  
 
Councillor Kellie Hinton was nominated as vice-chair for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED:  to appoint Councillor Hinton as vice-chair of the council for 
the 2022/23 municipal year, until the next annual meeting of the Council in 
May 2023. 
 
Councillor Hinton signed her declaration of acceptance of office. 

 

4 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 
2022 as a correct record and agree that the Chair sign them as such 
subject to the replacement of “result in” with “be purely for” in the last line of 
minute 71. 
 

5 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
None. 
 

6 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None. 
 

7 Public participation  
 
One member of the public had registered to ask a question. 
 
Melanie Mousley Jones asked the following question. 
 
“I understand that South Oxfordshire District Council is assigning officers to work on 
climate change mitigation and adaptation. Please could you tell me how many full time 
equivalent officers are assigned to climate action work, and what their roles will be? I am 
particularly interested in what outward-facing roles there will be to enable greenhouse gas 
reductions in the district at-large”. 
 
Councillor Andrea Powell, Cabinet member for corporate services, policy and 
programmes, responded to the question. Action to tackle Climate Change is a high priority 
in the Council’s Corporate Plan. The recently adopted Climate Action Plan, fully costed 
and included within the agreed 2022/23 budget, is now being implemented. Council has 
agreed additional funds to supplement the projects included within the action plan. The 
council aims to have six FTEs included in the core Climate Team, including a 
communications expert, to coordinate work in the action plan. However, it is important to 
note that all council service teams have climate action work embedded into their 
operational activities and, as such, all officers could be included as considered as being 
assigned to address climate work. 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 3 

8 Petitions  
 
None. 
 

9 Appointments to committees, panels and joint committees for 
2022/23  

 
Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on the appointment of 
those committees and joint committees which are required to be politically balanced; 
together with the Climate Ecological Emergencies Advisory Committee, Licensing Acts 
Committee, Community Grants Panel and appointments to joint bodies. 
 
The chair referred to the following recommendation, circulated prior to the meeting, 
covering these appointments and to reflect the allocation of the vacant committee 
positions. 

That for the 2022/23 municipal year Council 
 
1. appoints the committees and panels for the 2022/23 year and allocate seats to each 

political group as set out in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting;  

2. appoints councillors and substitutes to sit on the committees and panels as set out 

in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting; 

3. appoints councillors to the Licensing Acts Committee as set out in the schedule 

circulated prior to the meeting;  

4. appoints councillors to the Climate Ecological Emergencies Advisory Committee as 
set out in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting; 

5. appoints councillors to the Community Grants Panel as set out in the schedule 
circulated prior to the meeting;  

6. appoints chairs and vice-chairs as set out in the schedule circulated prior to the 
meeting;  

7. appoints David Turner as the council’s representative and David Bretherton as 
substitute on the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

8. appoints Sam Casey-Rerhaye as the council’s representative and Maggie Filipova-
Rivers as substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel;  

9. appoints Peter Dragonetti, Victoria Haval and David Turner to the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel; 

10. authorises the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to any vacant 
committee or panel seat and substitute positions in accordance with the wishes of 
the relevant group leader. 

 
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
1. appoint the following committees and panels for the 2022/23 municipal year and to 

appoint the membership, substitutes and chairs and vice-chairs as indicated to sit on 

them (see table below); 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 4 

Planning Committee, 11 Members  

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (2) Henley 

Residents 

(1) 

Labour (1) Liberal 

Democrat (3) 

SORT 

(1) 

Lorraine 

Hillier 

Sam Casey-

Rerhaye 

Ken Arlett Axel 

Macdonald  

Tim Bearder Elizabeth 

Gillespie 

Ian Snowdon  Peter 

Dragonetti 

(Vice-Chair) 

  David 

Bretherton 

(Chair) 

 

Alan 

Thompson 

   Victoria Haval  

Preferred substitutes  

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (3) Henley 

Residents 

(2) 

Labour (2) Liberal 

Democrat 

(3) 

SORT (1) 

Jane Murphy Jo Robb Stefan 

Gawrysiak 

Mocky Khan Kate 

Gregory  

Sue Roberts 

Caroline 

Newton 

Vacancy Kellie 

Hinton 

Celia Wilson Alexandrine 

Kantor 

 

Vacancy Vacancy   David 

Turner 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Committee, 9 Members 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (1) Henley 

Residents (1) 

Labour (1) Liberal Democrat (3) 

Anna Badcock Jo Robb Stefan 

Gawrysiak 

Mocky Khan 

(Vice-Chair) 

Alexandrine Kantor 

David 

Bartholomew 

   George Levy 

Ian White 

(Chair) 

   David Turner 

Preferred substitutes 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (3) Henley 

Residents (2) 

Labour (2) Liberal Democrat (3) 

Lorraine Hillier Sam Casey-

Rerhaye 

Ken Arlett Axel 

Macdonald 

Tim Bearder 

Ian Snowdon Peter 

Dragonetti 

Kellie Hinton Celia Wilson Victoria Haval 

Alan Thompson Vacancy   Kate Gregory 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 5 

Joint Scrutiny Committee, 5 Members 

Conservative (1) Green (1) Henley Residents 

(1) 

Liberal Democrat (2) 

Ian White (Co-chair) Jo Robb Stefan Gawrysiak Kate Gregory 

   David Turner 

Preferred 

substitutes 

   

Conservative (3) Green (3) Henley Residents 

(2) 

Liberal Democrat (3) 

Anna Badcock Sam Casey-

Rerhaye  

Ken Arlett Alexandrine Kantor 

Caroline Newton Peter 

Dragonetti 

Kellie Hinton Victoria Haval  

Alan Thompson Vacancy  George Levy 

 

Joint Audit and Governance, 4 Members 

Conservative (1) Green (1) Labour (1) Liberal Democrat (1) 

Jane Murphy Peter Dragonetti  Mocky Khan (Co-

Chair) 

George Levy 

Preferred 

substitutes 

   

Conservative (3) Green (3) Labour (2) Liberal Democrat (3) 

David Bartholomew Sam Casey-

Rerhaye 

Axel Macdonald Victoria Haval 

Alan Thompson Jo Robb Celia Wilson Alexandrine Kantor  

Ian White Vacancy  David Turner 

 

Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee, 6 Members  

Conservative (2) HRG (1) Labour (1) Liberal Democrat (2) 

David Bartholomew Ken Arlett Mocky Khan Maggie Filipova-Rivers 

Lynn Lloyd (Chair)   David Turner 

Conservative (3) HRG (2) Labour (2) Liberal Democrat (3) 

Anna Badcock Stefan Gawrysiak Axel Macdonald Peter-Paul Barker  

Lorraine Hillier Kellie Hinton Celia Wilson Sue Cooper 

Ian Snowdon   George Levy 

 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 6 

Joint Staff Committee, 3 Members 

Conservative (1) Liberal Democrat (2) 

Jane Murphy David Rouane 

 Maggie Filipova-Rivers 

Substitutes 

The Leader may be substituted by another Cabinet member. Other members of the 

Committee may be substituted by any member of that Council’s political group (executive 

or non-executive).    

 

 

 

General Licensing Committee, 12 Members 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (2) Henley 

Residents 

(1) 

Labour (1) Liberal 

Democrat (4) 

SORT (1) 

Lorraine Hillier Peter 

Dragonetti 

Kellie Hinton  Axel 

Macdonald 

Victoria Haval 

(Chair) 

Elizabeth 

Gillespie (Vice-

Chair) 

Ian Snowdon Jo Robb    David 

Bretherton 

 

Andrea Warren    Leigh Rawlins   

    Anne-Marie 

Simpson  

 

No substitutes  

 

Licensing Acts Committee, 12 Members 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (2) Henley 

Residents 

(1) 

Labour (1) Liberal 

Democrat (4) 

SORT (1) 

Lorraine Hillier Peter 

Dragonetti 

Kellie Hinton  Axel 

Macdonald 

Victoria Haval 

(Chair) 

Elizabeth 

Gillespie 

(Vice-Chair) 

Ian Snowdon Jo Robb    David 

Bretherton 

 

Andrea Warren    Leigh Rawlins   

    Anne-Marie 

Simpson  

 

No substitutes  

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 7 

 

Appeals Panel, 5 Members 

Conservative (1) Green (1) Liberal Democrat (2) SORT (1) 

Lorraine Hillier Peter 

Dragonetti 

Victoria Haval Vacancy 

  Anne-Marie Simpson  

Preferred 

substitutes 

   

Conservative (3) Green (3) Liberal Democrat (3) SORT (2) 

Lynn Lloyd Sam 

Casey-

Rerhaye 

Kate Gregory Vacancy 

Caroline Newton Vacancy George Levy  

Ian Snowdon Vacancy Alexandrine Kantor   

 

Community Grants Panel, 9 Members 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green (1) Henley 

Residents (1) 

Labour (1) Liberal 

Democrat (3) 

Lynn Lloyd Jo Robb Kellie Hinton  Axel 

Macdonald 

Kate Gregory 

Ian Snowdon    George Levy 

(Chair) 

Andrea 

Warren 

   Victoria Haval  

Substitutes 

Conservative 

(3) 

Green 

(3) 

Henley 

Residents (2) 

Labour (2) Liberal 

Democrat (3) 

Lorraine 

Hillier 

Sam Casey-

Rerhaye 

Ken Arlett Mocky Khan David 

Bretherton 

Caroline 

Newton 

Peter Dragonetti Stefan Gawrysiak Celia Wilson David Turner 

Alan 

Thompson 

Vacancy   Alexandrine 

Kantor 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



 8 

Names Climate Ecological Emergencies Advisory Committee, 12 

Members  

Conservative (3) Greens (2) Henley 

Residents 

(1) 

Labour (1) Liberal 

Democrat (4) 

SORT 

(1) 

Lynn Lloyd Sam 

Casey-

Rerhaye 

(Chair) 

Stefan 

Gawrysiak 

Celia 

Wilson 

Sue Cooper  Sue 

R

ob

er

ts 

Jane Murphy Andrea  

Powell 
  Kate Gregory  

Caroline Newton    Leigh Rawlins  

    David Rouane  

PREFERRED 

SUBSTITUTES 

     

Conservative (3) Greens (3) Henley 

Residents 

(2) 

Labour (2) Liberal 

Democrat (4) 

SORT 

(1) 

Lorraine Hillier Robin 
Bennett 

Ken Arlett Mocky 

Khan 

Anne-Marie 

Simpson 

Elizabeth 

Gillespie 

Alan Thompson Jo Robb  

 
Kellie 

Hinton 

Axel 

Macdonald 

Alexandrine 

Kantor  

 

Vacancy Vacancy   Victoria Haval   

    Maggie Filipova 

Rivers  

 

 
 
2. appoint David Turner as the council’s representative and David Bretherton as 

substitute on the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

3. appoint Sam Casey-Rerhaye as the council’s representative and Maggie Filipova-

Rivers as substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel;  

4. appoint Peter Dragonetti, Victoria Haval and David Turner to the Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership Scrutiny Panel; 

5. authorise the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to any vacant 

committee or panel seat and substitute positions in accordance with the wishes of the 

relevant group leader. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



 9 

10 Adoption of Oxfordshire Code of Conduct for Councillors  
 
Council considered the recommendation of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, 
made at its meeting on 29 March 2022, to adopt the Oxfordshire Code of Conduct. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve the Oxfordshire Code of Conduct, appended to the report of the 
monitoring officer to the meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee held on 29 
March 2022. 
 

11 Appointment of Independent Persons  
 
Council considered the report of the head of legal & democratic and monitoring officer 
which proposed the appointment of six Independent Persons to assist the monitoring 
officer with code of conduct matters. The report proposed that the Independent Persons 
are appointed by both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils. 

RESOLVED: to appoint Mike Boon, Julie Byron, George Green,  
Andrew Mills-Hick, Chris Smith and Martin Wright as Independent Persons for a period of 
four years until the annual meeting in May 2026. 
 

12 Report of the leader of the council 
 
Councillor David Rouane, Leader of the council, provided an update on a number of 
issues. The text of his address is available on the council’s website. 
 

13 Questions on notice  
 
No questions had been submitted by councillors. 
 

14 Motions on notice  
 
Council considered the motions from councillors set out in the agenda in accordance  
with Council Procedure Rule 38. 
 

A. Councillor Ken Arlett moved, and Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak seconded the motion 
as set out in the agenda at agenda item 14  

 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 

 
RESOLVED: that 
Councillors have the ability to call in a planning application within 28 days of the start of 
the statutory consultation period.  This is an exception to the general delegation to the 
Head of Planning who has authority to deal with planning applications. 
 
Currently, there is no ability for a councillor to call in a planning application that has been 
amended after the 28 day period comes to an end.    
 
It may well be the case that the majority of councillors are unaware that amended planning 
applications cannot be called in after the 28 day period has elapsed, yet there is no 
provision in the Constitution to resolve this. 
 
Council resolves that: 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/democracy/leaders-statement-report-to-the-council-19-may-2022/


 10 

 
The Constitution Review Group is asked to consider the delegations to the Head of 
Planning as part of its review of the Constitution and in particular whether the call-in 
exception should be extended to allow for a councillor to call in an amended planning 
application notwithstanding the 28 day period has elapsed. 
 
 

B. With the agreement of Council, Councillor Sue Roberts moved, and Councillor 
Elizabeth Gillespie seconded, an amended motion to reflect acceptance of 
amended wording prior to the Council meeting. Deleted words shown by a 
strikethrough and additional words in bold.  

 
This Council Notes: 
 
The Russia-Ukraine war has newly highlighted our dependence on dirty oil and gas from 
rogue states. A third of our people are expected to be plunged into poverty by October, as 
domestic fuel prices rise. We lack fuel-security. 
 
In October 2021, Council noted the need to retrofit, wrote to Government, and provided a 
report on the retrofit landscape. The Council is now employing staff to deliver the 
recommendations of that report.  
 
Since then, the situation has greatly worsened. The response to fuel scarcity by the 
Government has been to focus on increasing supply of oil and gas, rather than reducing 
demand. The climate crisis has worsened; and protection of our populace from the 
ravages of global heating has come further into focus. 
We need excellent insulation, not only to keep us warm in winter, but to keep homes cool 
in the summer. In 2003, 70,000 Europeans died over a few days from the heat; such 
summers are set to become the norm. 
 
It is estimated that up to a third of the population could be plunged into poverty by 
October, as domestic fuel prices rise, and the country lacks fuel security. However, 
the Government has no plan for mass-retrofitting of homes with insulation, airtightness, 
mechanical ventilation, and renewable energy generation. 
 
In South Oxfordshire, we aim to be zero carbon by 2030, but, without Government help, 
we have few means to make that happen. Almost a third of our greenhouse gas emissions 
are from homes. A Government mass-retrofit scheme could reduce this wastefulness of 
our precious fuel.  
 
In October, there will be further fuel price-rises, and winter will be coming. To retrofit as 
many homes as possible by then, Government should go on a war-footing in response to 
the collateral damage to our people from the Russia-Ukraine war. But builders and 
materials are in short supply, even for newbuild. Government could enable the requisition 
of builders and materials for this task.   
 
Inevitably, this would reduce resources for new housing development, and Local 
Authorities (LAs) might be unable to fulfil development targets. Rules that punish LAs such 
as the 5-year housing supply rule should be relaxed to enable resources to be directed 
toward retrofit. 
A secure long-term strategy with certain investment would enable mass retrofit to boost 
the economy and GDP; providing good, local work. Our country is rightly proud of its 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



 11 

world-leading managerial excellence. In mass-retrofitting we could have a new export, of 
systems-expertise for this complex task. 
 
Council resolves: 
 
1. To ask the Leader to write to the Chair of the Environmental Audit Committee and 
to relevant Government departments (once again) to request that a high level strategy be 
created for mass retrofitting of homes for the reasons given above, and specifically that: 
 
• Local Authorities (LAs) be the delivery vehicles for mass-retrofit 
• LAs beare provided with constant and long-term funding to maintain retrofit units 
• A structured strategy for mass-retrofit be mandated by Government 
• Resources be diverted from newbuild committed for mass-retrofit as necessary 
• LAs be relieved of regulations requiring them to keep up a high supply of new housing 
• Government reject calls to expand fossil fuel extraction and focus instead on 

energy efficiency and the rapid rollout of renewables, and demand reduction 
strategies such as retrofit, consistent with the Government’s stated net zero 
goals 

 
2. To respond immediately to fuel-poverty; ask Cabinet to ensure that the council: 
 
• Continues to provide has an advice-line on what to do if you cannot afford your 

household fuel bills 
• make this advice-line prominent - top position - on our website 
• can provide guidance and signposting good advice on retrofitting from a position of 

expertise in buildings fabric and renewables to residents, especially those most at 

risk of fuel poverty. 

After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note that: 
 
In October 2021, Council noted the need to retrofit, wrote to Government, and provided a 
report on the retrofit landscape. The Council is now employing staff to deliver the 
recommendations of that report.  
 
It is estimated that up to a third of the population could be plunged into poverty by October, 
as domestic fuel prices rise, and the country lacks fuel security. However, the Government 
has no plan for mass-retrofitting of homes with insulation, airtightness, mechanical 
ventilation, and renewable energy generation. 
 
In South Oxfordshire, we aim to be zero carbon by 2030, but, without Government help, 
we have few means to make that happen. Almost a third of our greenhouse gas emissions 
are from homes. A Government mass-retrofit scheme could reduce this wastefulness.  
 
A secure long-term strategy with certain investment would enable mass retrofit to boost 
the economy and GDP; providing good, local work. Our country is rightly proud of its 
world-leading managerial excellence. In mass-retrofitting we could have a new export, of 
systems-expertise for this complex task. 
 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 2



 12 

 
Resolves: 
 
1. To ask the Leader to write to the Chair of the Environmental Audit Committee and to 
relevant Government departments to request that a high level strategy be created for mass 
retrofitting of homes for the reasons given above, and specifically that: 
 
• Local Authorities (LAs) be the delivery vehicles for mass-retrofit 
• LAs be provided with constant and long-term funding to maintain retrofit units 
• A structured strategy for mass-retrofit be mandated by Government 
• Resources be committed for mass-retrofit as necessary 
• Government reject calls to expand fossil fuel extraction and focus instead on energy 

efficiency and the rapid rollout of renewables, and demand reduction strategies such as 
retrofit, consistent with the Government’s stated net zero goals 

 
2. To respond immediately to fuel-poverty; ask Cabinet to ensure that the council: 
 
• Continues to provide an advice-line on what to do if you cannot afford your household 

bills 
• make this advice-line prominent - top position - on our website 
• provide guidance and signposting on retrofitting to residents, especially those most at 

risk of fuel poverty. 
 
 

C. Councillor Sue Roberts moved, and Councillor Elizabeth Gillespie seconded the 
motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 14  

 
Whilst a number of councillors spoke in support of a return to a committee system of 
governance, the majority did not consider that the time was right to consider its 
introduction, with other priorities for the council, including supporting Ukrainian families 
and staff resource implications with the commencement of preparations for the district and 
parish elections in May 2023.  
 
On being put the motion was declared lost.  
 
 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 7:30pm 
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



Document is Restricted

Page 20

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 26

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	12 Application for grant funding - Thame and District Housing Association
	Appendix 1, 23/06/2022 Cabinet


